2000

Jayni Searle v. Boyd and Dorothy Searle : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This is an appeal from a final order of the Third District Court in and for Salt Lake County, State of Utah, which set aside entry of a foreign judgment entered by the Fort Peck Sioux and Assiniboine Tribal Court on October 16, 1998, and denied enforcement of foreign judgment. The Utah Court of Appeals has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to UTAH CODE ANNO. § 78-2a-3(2)(j) and Rule 3 of the UTAH R. APP. P.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES FOR REVIEW

The issues presented for review in this case are:

I. Did the trial court err when it concluded that the October 16, 1999 Tribal Court Order was unenforceable because it "relates to and stems from" the May 22, 1998 Order? This issue presents a

question of law that does not require deference to the trial court. Marquiles By and Through Marquiles v. Upchurch, 696 P.2d 1195, 1199-1200 (Utah 1985). The final order was decided after Motions and Memoranda were filed and upon the record. This issue was sufficiently pled and preserved in said Motions and Memoranda at R. at 2-18, 19-74, 208-321, & 326-424.

II. Did the trial court err in setting aside the Entry of the Foreign Judgment under Rule 60(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure? This issue presents a question of law that does not require deference to the trial court. Marquiles By and Through Marquiles v. Upchurch, 696 P.2d 1195, 1199-1200 (Utah 1985). This issue was sufficiently pled and preserved in said Motions and Memoranda at R. at 208-321 & 326-424

STATUTES AND CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS

Appellant believes the following statutes and constitutional provisions are determinative of this appeal.

Statutory Provisions

UTAH CODE ANN. §78-22a-1 et. seq. (1999)

Rules of Procedure

Rule 54 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure

Rule 60 of Utah Rules of Civil Procedure

STATEMENT OF THE CASE/FACTS

Overview:

An action was commenced on June 15, 1999 in the Utah Third District Court in and for Salt Lake County to enforce two foreign judgments, to wit: (1) A Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree (herein "Custody Decree") entered on October 16, 1998; and (2) An Order on an Order to Show Cause Hearing (herein "Contempt Order") entered on November 23, 1998. Both orders stem from a proceeding in the Fort Peck Assiniboine and Sioux Tribal Court (herein after "Tribal Court"). The Honorable Judge Leslie A. Lewis presided over the Third District Court matter from which this appeal arises.

The Custody Decree was entered on a default judgment against Appellees due to their failure to answer a Petition for Sole Custody filed by Appellant. The Petition for Sole Custody was filed in the Tribal Court on or about the 8th day of September, 1998. The Contempt Order was entered after an Order to Show Cause Hearing in which: (1) Appellees failed to appear at the hearing after having been served both personally and through their counsel with notice of the hearing; and (2) Evidence was offered by Appellant to support the contempt determination by proof beyond a reasonable doubt. The District Court entered an Entry of Judgment on August 25, 1999 to assist Appellant in the enforcement of the judgments. The Request for Entry of Judgment

was filed subsequent to the expiration of the thirty day time period required under UTAH CODE ANNO. §78-22a-3 (1999). The trial court set aside the August 25, 1999 Entry of Judgment and denied enforcement of the foreign judgment.

Background:

1. In February of 1998, Appellees commenced an action in the State of Utah, Third District Juvenile Court, seeking to terminate the parental rights of Appellant. Appellees also filed an Ex Parte Motion for Temporary Custody. On March 3, 1998, the Third District Juvenile Court, Judge Olof A. Johansson presiding, granted the Ex Parte Motion and entered an Ex Parte Order of Temporary Custody. In mid-March of 1998, Appellant filed a Petition to Transfer Jurisdiction over the matter to the Fort Peck Tribal Court and a Petition to Invalidate the Ex Parte Order of Temporary Custody. **See R. at 2-14, 48-51.**

2. On May 15, 1998, the Third District Juvenile Court, Judge Olof A. Johansson presiding, issued an order transferring jurisdiction over the matter to the Fort Peck Tribal Court. On May 22, 1998, the Fort Peck Tribal Court accepted Jurisdiction and ordered that the minor child who was the subject of the termination action be taken to the reservation and temporary custody placed with Appellant. Appellant filed a Petition for Writ of Assistance action in the Third District Court in Utah for enforcement of the May 22, 1998 order. On June 8, 1998, after a

hearing involving both court's judges and all counsel involved, the Third District Juvenile Court and the Fort Peck Tribal Court issued orders staying the proceedings pending review by a higher court. **See R. at 2-14, 48-51.** In mid to late June of 1998, Appellant filed a Petition for Extraordinary Relief with the Utah Court of Appeals.

On September 1, 1998, this Court issued an order stating:

The juvenile court transferred jurisdiction over issues concerning the minor, C.S., to the Fort Peck Tribal Court and the tribal court accepted jurisdiction over the matter, including jurisdiction over custody issues. Since the juvenile court no longer had jurisdiction over the matter after the tribal court accepted jurisdiction, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the petition for extra ordinary relief is hereby granted, the matter is deemed transferred to the tribal court, and any orders issued by the juvenile court after May 22, 1998, are hereby vacated. **See R. at 2-14, 48-51.**

3. On September 8, 1998, Appellant filed a petition for custody in the Tribal Court and Appellant caused Appellees to be served by depositing a copy of the petition in the U.S. Mail and sending it to Appellees' counsel. On September 9, 1998, pursuant to a voluntary dismissal by Appellees and a stipulation thereto by Appellant, the Fort Peck Tribal Court entered an order dismissing the termination of parental rights action. The order continued the May 22, 1998 order transferring temporary custody to Appellant. **See R. at 2-14, 48-51.**

4. On October 16, 1998, the tribal court entered a default judgment against Appellee on petition for custody and Appellant caused Appellees to be served by depositing a copy of the petition in the U.S. Mail and sending it to Appellees' counsel. On November 2, 1998, a Motion for Order to Show Cause with supporting affidavit was filed with the Fort Peck Tribal Court. The Court issued an Order on November 2, 1998 directing that a hearing be held and that Appellees appear at the hearing on November 19, 1998. The Motion and Order were served upon Appellees and upon their counsel by U.S. Mail. A hearing was held on November 19, 1998 and Appellees failed to appear at the hearing. An order was issued on the November 23, 1998 hearing and was served upon Appellees and their Counsel by U.S. Mail on November 24, 1998. **See R. at 2-14, 48-51.**

5. No appeals have been taken of any of the orders issued by the Fort Peck Tribal Court. On March 8, 1998, Judge Hanson refused to give full faith and credit and enforce the May 22, 1998 tribal court order because at the time of the transfer of custody, Appellees were not given a hearing in which they could oppose the transfer of custody, thereby, in Judge Hanson's view, denying Appellees due process and dismissed the matter. **See R. at 2-14, 48-51.** Judge Hanson's ruling specifically provided that his ruling did not affect a foreign judgment action on subsequent tribal court rulings. **See R. at 2-14, 48-51, 177.**

6. This matter was commenced on June 15, 1999 under the Utah Foreign Judgment Act. **See R. at 2-14.** On July 15, 1999, 30 days had passed without the filing of a Motion to Stay as Required by the Utah Foreign Judgment Act. **See R. at 66-67.** An Application for Entry of Judgment was filed on August 13, 1999. **See R. at 66-67.** An Entry of Judgment was entered on August 25, 1999 recognizing the October 16, 1998 Custody Decree. **See R. at 68-74.**

7. On November 16, 1999, Appellee filed a Motion to Set Aside the August 25, 1999 Entry of Judgment.¹ **See R. at 153-207.** A temporary stay was issued on November 23, 1999. **See R. at 324.** A Response to the Motion to Set Aside was filed by Appellant on December 1, 1999. **See R. at 326-424.** The Court issued a ruling on February 7, 2000. **See R. at 611-615.** An order was issued on the Court's ruling on February 25, 2000. **See R. at 620-624.** This appeal followed.

The Third District Court's Findings:

The trial court made the following Findings of Fact:

1. Petitioner Jayni Searle (hereafter "Petitioner") filed a petition for Writ of Assistance in the Third Judicial District Court, Salt Lake County, State of Utah, Case No. 98-090-5344, In the Matter of Chad Searle, a Minor Indian Child, seeking to enforce a May 22, 1998, Fort Peck Tribal Court custody Order that

¹ The Motion also sought to address other issues which are not pertinent to this appeal.

transferred custody from Respondent Boyd Searle (hereafter "Respondent") to the Petitioner. The petition sought recognition of the May 22nd Order as a foreign judgment under the Utah Foreign Judgment Act.

2. Judge Timothy R. Hanson denied the petition on the basis that since Respondent was not given an opportunity to be heard at the May 22nd hearing, the Order was not entitled to full faith and credit.

3. Petitioner subsequently filed a Petition before this Court to enforce an October 16, 1998 Fort Peck Tribal Court Order's Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree, finding that Respondents had "wrongfully maintained custody in contravention...of [the] Court's order of May 22, 1998."

4. On August 25, 1999, this Court entered an Order entitled "Entry of Judgment" which purported to give full faith and credit to the October 16th Tribal Court Decree... **SEE R. AT 620-21.**

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Enforcement of the Tribal Court Order: The trial court erred when it concluded that the Custody Order was unenforceable. The trial court based its ruling on its conclusion that the October 16, 1998 Custody Order "relates to and stems from" the Temporary Order of May 22, 1998. This legal conclusion does not reflect the Utah Court's long standing view of enforcement of foreign judgment actions. The Court's conclusion does not address factual determination regarding finality and validity as required by the Estate of Jones standard. The conclusion does not reflect any viable standard under the Utah Foreign Judgment Act. Accordingly, it is an erroneous ruling and should be vacated because the judgment satisfies both the finality and validity standards.

Rule 60(b) Motion : The trial court erred in granting Appellees' Rule 60(b) Motion to Set Aside the August 25, 1998 Entry of the Foreign Judgment. Under Rule 60(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure the Motion must be brought within 90 days of the entry of the judgment. The judgment in the instant matter became properly entered on July 15, 1999. The Rule 60(b) Motion was not filed until November 15, 1999, which is beyond the ninety day time period or a reasonable time period. Additionally, Appellees failed to demonstrate any of the enumerated grounds for which relief could have been granted under Rule 60(b).

ARGUMENT

A. TRIAL COURT INCORRECTLY CONCLUDED THAT THE ORDER WAS NOT ENFORCEABLE BECAUSE IT "RELATED TO OR STEMMED" FROM THE MAY 22, 1998 TEMPORARY ORDER

i. THE TRIAL COURT'S RULING AND UNDERLYING JUDGMENTS

On or about February 7, 2000, the trial court issued a memorandum decision entitled "Court's Ruling," which stated as follows:

...Having reviewed the moving and responding memoranda with respect to remaining motions, the Court rules as state herein. Since the Motions before the Court are related to concerns previously brought before Judge Hanson, this Court provides a brief procedural history of that case and its connection to the present case. In Chad Searle, the petitioner herein filed a Writ of Assistance seeking to enforce a May 22, 1998, Fort Peck Tribal Court custody Order that transferred custody

from respondent Boyd Searle to petitioner. The Petition essentially sought recognition of the May 22nd Order as a foreign judgment under the Utah Foreign Judgment Act. Judge Hanson denied the Petition on the basis that since respondent Boyd Searle was not given an opportunity to be heard at the May 22nd hearing, the Order was not entitled to full faith and credit. (See Order of Dismissal, dated July 26, 1999).

In this case, the petitioner is attempting to enforce the Tribal Court's October 16, 1998, Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree, finding that the respondents had wrongfully maintained custody in contravention...of [the] Court's order of May 22, 1998." On August 25, 1999, this Court entered an order entitled "Entry of Judgment" which purported to give full faith and credit to the October 16th Decree. The respondents are now seeking to set aside the August 25th Order and the October 16th Tribal Court Decree.

The Court rules that the October 16th Tribal Court Decree directly relates to and stems from an Order which another court has concluded to not be entitled to full faith and credit. Specifically, the Decree reinforces the May 22nd Order and reiterates that it "is hereby continued." The October 16th Decree is therefore flawed because it maintains custody of the minor child under an Order which was issued without giving respondent Boyd Searle his due process right to be heard. Accordingly, the October 16th Order is similarly not entitled to full faith and credit. The Motion to Set Aside is therefore [granted] in part and this Court's August 25th Judgment is set aside... **SEE R. at 617-18. See Addenda "A."**

A subsequent Written Order was prepared and submitted by Appellee and signed by the trial judge on February 27, 2000, which identified the following Factual Findings from the "Court's Ruling:"

1. Petitioner Jayni Searle (hereafter "Petitioner") filed a petition for Writ of Assistance in the Third Judicial District Court, Salt Lake County, State of Utah, Case No. 98-090-5344, In the Matter of Chad Searle, a Minor Indian Child, seeking to enforce a May 22, 1998, Fort Peck Tribal Court custody Order that transferred custody from

Respondent Boyd Searle ... to the Petitioner. The petition sought recognition of the May 22nd Order as a foreign judgment under the Utah Foreign Judgment Act.

2. Judge Timothy R. Hanson denied the petition on the basis that since Respondent was not given an opportunity to be heard at the May 22nd hearing, the Order was not entitled to full faith and credit.

3. Petitioner subsequently filed a Petition before this Court to enforce an October 16, 1998 Fort Peck Tribal Court Order's Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree, finding that Respondents had "wrongfully maintained custody in contravention...of [the] Court's order of May 22, 1998."

4. On August 25, 1999, this Court entered an Order entitled "Entry of Judgment" which purported to give full faith and credit to the October 16th Tribal Court Decree...
SEE R. AT 620-21. See Addenda "B"

The trial court entered Conclusions of Law which, based upon these findings, state:

The October 16th Trial Court Decree directly relates to and stems from an Order which another court in Chad Searle has concluded not to be entitled to full faith and credit. Specifically, the Decree reinforces the May 22nd Order and reiterates that it "is hereby continued." The October 16th Decree is therefore flawed because it maintains custody of the minor child under an Order which was issued without giving Respondent Boyd Searle his due process right to be heard. Accordingly, the October 16th Order is similarly not entitled to full faith and credit, and the August 25th Order must be set aside. **See R. at 631. See Addenda "C."**

The foreign judgments, Judge Hanson's Letter of July 15, 1999, and the Order of July 26, 1999 provide the evidence upon which the trial court could have made any finding and/or conclusion under Utah Foreign Judgment analysis or a full faith and credit analysis.

A. The Custody Decree from October 16, 1998 provides as follows:

The above-entitled matter came before the Court on Jayni Searle's Petition for Restoration of Custody. An entry of, notice of, and application for default having been entered for Respondent's failure to answer the Petition in a timely manner. An Affidavit of Residence and Grounds having been filed by Jayni Searle. The Court having reviewed the file and having made its decision, now enters the following:

FINDINGS OF FACT:

1. Chad Searle is subject to the jurisdiction of this Court pursuant to a ruling by Judge Stafne that this Court has exclude jurisdiction.
2. Chad Searle is a Native American child and a member or eligible for membership in the Fort Peck Assiniboine and Sioux Tribes.
3. Jayne Searle is a biological mother of Chad Searle.
4. Temporary custody of Chad was awarded by the Court to Jayne Searle on May 22, 1998.
5. The emotional father of Chad Searle died in February of 1998.
6. Since then, Boyd and Dorothy Searle have wrongfully maintained custody in contravention of the Indian Child Welfare Act (25 U.S.C. 1901 et. seq.) And this Court's order of May 22, 1998.
7. Boyd and Dorothy Searle are the emotional grandparents and currently have physical custody despite the Court's order.
8. Boyd and Dorothy Searle have petitioned the court to dismiss the termination action pending in tribal court. See Attached exhibit #1.
9. Jayne Searle is a person fit to assume custody on the afore-mentioned child.
10. Jayne Searle and Chad Searle enjoy the relationship of mother and child.
11. Jayne Searle and Chad Searle have a normal parent-child bond which has been drastically impacted by the emotional grandparents.

BASED UPON the foregoing Findings of Fact, the Court hereby enters its:

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. The matter is properly before the Court pursuant to tribal code.
2. Jayne and Chad Searle are members or eligible for membership in the Fort Peck Assiniboiné and Sioux Tribes.
3. Jayne Searle is domiciled on the reservation.
4. Chad Searle, pursuant to law and tribal custom, became domiciled on the reservation due to the death of his physical custodian and emotional father, Boyd Carl Searle.
5. Jayne Searle is a fit and appropriate person who should be awarded custody.

BASED UPON the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the Court hereby enters the following:

DECREE AND ORDER

1. Chad Searle is hereby placed in the permanent custody, care, and control of Jayne Searle, his natural and biological mother.
2. The previous order requiring transfer of Chad Searle to the reservation is hereby continued.
3. Law enforcement is hereby directed to remove the child and return him to the reservation.
SEE R. at 2-4 & Addenda "D."

B. The Contempt Order from November 23, 1998 which provides as follows:

The above-entitled matter came before the Court for hearing on an Order to Show Cause on the 19th Day of November, 1998. Present for the hearing was Jayni Searle. The Court notes that Boyd and Dorothy Searle were personally served with notice of the hearing and the Order to Show Cause by certified, return receipt, U.S. mail. The Court notes further that counsel for Boyd and Dorothy Searle, Maria Christina Santana, was served by certified, return receipt, U.S. mail. The Court, having heard testimony from Jayni Searle and argument and having fully reviewed the file, enters the following:

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Chad Searle is an Indian child as defined in the Indian Child Welfare Act.
2. Jayni Searle is an Indian parent as defined in the Indian Child Welfare Act.
3. Jayni Searle is domiciled on the reservation.
4. Boyd Carl Searle was Chad Searle's emotional father, having been deemed so by his own admission in a divorce action in the Third District Court.
5. On February 1998, Boyd Carl Searle died.
6. Chad Searle was in the custody of his emotional father, Boyd Carl Searle, when the emotional father died.
7. The emotional grandparents, Boyd and Dorothy Searle filed a Petition to Terminate Parental Rights of Jayni Searle in the Third District Court in Salt Lake County for the State of Utah.
8. On March 3, 1998, Boyd and Dorothy Searle obtained temporary custody of Chad through order of the Third District Juvenile Court of Utah.