2000

Jayni Searle v. Boyd Searle and Dorothy Searle : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

II.

The trial court was barred by res judicata from giving full faith and credit to the October 16, 1998 Tribal Court order because it continued and affirmed the May 22, 1998 Tribal Court order that Judge Hanson had dismissed and found to not be entitled to full faith and credit.

III.

The trial court's order granting the grandparent's motion to set aside was not an abuse of discretion and therefore must be affirmed. Further, the mother's position that the motion was untimely and that the trial court lacked sufficient grounds to grant the motion is unsupported by a transcript or marshalling of the evidence. The mother's complaint that the trial court did not enter findings as to Rule 60(b) grounds must not be considered by the Appellate Court because the issue was not properly preserved for appellate review.

court”) seeking enforcement of a second Tribal Court order that specifically held the grandparents in contempt for noncompliance with the May 22, 1998 Tribal Court order which Judge Hanson had determined was entered in violation of the grandfather’s due process rights. **(R. 15-16)**. The grandparents filed a Response objecting to entry of the Tribal Court order. **(R. 31)**. The trial court issued an Entry of Judgment on August 25, 1999 recognizing and giving full faith and credit to the Tribal Court order. **(R. 68-74)**. On November 16, 1999, the grandparents filed an Emergency Motion for Stay, Motion to Set Aside Judgment and Motion for Declaratory Judgment. **(R. 151-207)**. On November 23, 1999, the trial court held a hearing on the grandparents Emergency Motion for Stay and Motion to Set Aside. **(R. 324)**. After hearing argument at the hearing, the trial court granted a stay and took under advisement whether to set aside the judgment. **(R. 324; 445-447)**. The trial court issued a written ruling on February 7, 2000, and entered an Order setting aside the Entry of Judgment on February 25, 2000. **(R. 611-615; 620-624)**. The trial court further set for hearing the Motion for Declaratory Judgment for April 2000 **(R. 611-615)**. The mother filed notice of appeal on March 27, 2000 before the Motion for Declaratory Judgment was heard. **(R. 627-633)**. The trial court convened a hearing on the motion for Declaratory Judgment and determined that since the issue was on appeal, hearing on the motion was no longer necessary (despite the grandparents objection). **(R. 673)**.

ARGUMENT

I. THE APPELLATE COURT MUST AFFIRM THE TRIAL COURT'S FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS BECAUSE THE MOTHER FAILED TO PROVIDE A TRANSCRIPT.

The mother's first issue asks, *Did the trial court err when it concluded that the October 16, 1999 Tribal Court order was unenforceable because it "relates to and stems from" the May 22, 1998 Order?* This issue is improperly characterized by the mother as a question of law. It should be properly characterized as a mixed question of fact and law because the mother challenges the sufficiency of the evidence throughout her brief and because the question hinges on whether the factual finding that one order related to and stemmed from another is correct.

The Appellate Court need not reach these issues, however, because of the mother's failure to provide a transcript. On November 23, 1999, the trial court held a hearing on the Motion for Stay and Motion to Set Aside Judgment. While the minute entry does not accurately reflect the entire substance of the hearing, it indicates the issue of "the second filing of complaint" (or the second filing for full faith and credit of the May 22, 1998 Tribal Court order, which was the crux of the Motion to Set Aside) was addressed and the trial court took under advisement the issue "to make a determination if the court erred or if there needs to be an adjustment in the Court's ruling." (R. 324.)

The mother's failure to provide a transcript makes it impossible for the Appellate Court to review all the evidence and determine whether the findings or conclusions are in error. The trial court's ruling must be affirmed particularly

since the mother's appeal relies heavily on her contention that the trial court either ignored the evidence, misread the evidence or reached conclusions contrary to the evidence. The mother's brief is riddled with assertions in this regard, for instance,

"ANALYSIS OF THE ERROR IN THE CONCLUSION OF LAW

(1) Court Incorrectly Entered a Conclusion Based Upon the Evidence"

(Appellant's Brief, 19.)

"...[T]he trial court's conclusion, based upon these findings and order, that the Custody Decree stemmed from the May 22, 1998 Order is not supported by the facts in the record. The evidence presented below indicates that the trial court's conclusion fails to factor in the entire gambit of language in the [Tribal Court's] Findings, Conclusions, and Order from October 1998."

(Appellant's Brief, 20.)

"Additionally, the Court's conclusion is not supported by the evidence."

(Appellant's Brief, 24.)

"The trial court's findings are insufficient to form a basis upon which to deny enforcement under the relevant case law."

(Appellant's Brief, 29.)

"The Judgment should be reversed in that Appellee's failed to demonstrate evidence justifying relief."

(Appellant's Brief, 32.)

"If the appellant intends to urge on appeal that a finding or conclusion is unsupported by or is contrary to the evidence, the appellant shall include in the record a transcript of all evidence relevant to such a finding or conclusion. Rule 11 [of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure] requires counsel provide the appellate court all evidence pertinent to the issues on appeal." *King v. Industrial*

Commission of Utah, 850 P.2d 1281, 1285; *Prudential Capital Group Co. v. Mattson*, 802 P.2d 104, 106 (Utah Ct. App. 1990), *Fackrell v. Fackrell*, 740 P.2d 1318, 1319 (Utah 1987). “A petitioner must also provide a transcript if he argues a legal conclusion is unsupported by the evidence in the case. Otherwise we [the appellate courts] have no basis on which to evaluate the findings and conclusions.” *King v. Industrial Commission of Utah* at 1285. Without a transcript, the Appellate Court must “review the court’s legal conclusions for consistency with the findings.” *Prudential Capital Group Co. v. Mattson* at 106; *Scarf v. BMG Co.*, 700 P.2d 1068, 1070 (Utah 198); *King v. Industrial Commission of Utah* at 1285.

The mother undeniably argues exactly what the preceding case law holds must be accompanied by a transcript: that the findings or conclusions are unsupported or contrary to the evidence as demonstrated *supra* from excerpts of the mother’s brief. In the absence of a transcript the mother must demonstrate the conclusions are simply inconsistent with the findings and she has failed to do this altogether. Consequently, the Appellate Court must disregard the arguments outright and affirm both the findings and conclusions.

II. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR BECAUSE RES JUDICATA BARRED ENFORCEMENT OF AND CONTEMPT FOR NONCOMPLIANCE WITH THE MAY 22, 1998 TRIBAL COURT ORDER.

Judge Hanson issued an order dismissing the mother’s petition seeking full faith and credit to a May 22, 1998 Tribal Court order on grounds that the grandfather’s due process rights had been violated on July 26, 1999. **(R. 174-177)**. The mother then submitted a second Tribal Court order dated October 16, 1998

to the trial court in this matter purporting to hold the grandfather in contempt for violating the May 22, 1998 order Judge Hanson had found to have been entered without due process and seeking to uphold and continue said order. **(R. 15-16).**

Based upon Judge Hanson's findings that the May 22, 1998 Tribal Court order was not entitled to full faith and credit, res judicata barred the trial court from enforcing the October 16, 1998 Tribal Court order that found the grandfather had wrongfully maintained custody and continued the order. "The doctrine of res judicata is based on the premise that the proper administration of justice is best served by limiting parties to one fair trial of an issue or cause." *Trimble Real Estate v. Monte Vista Ranch*, 758 P.2d 451, 453 (Utah Ct. App. 1988). Res judicata has two distinct branches. The first branch is claim preclusion, which bars the relitigation of claims that have been previously litigated between the same parties, and two, issue preclusion, which prevents relitigation of issues that have been decided. *BJH v. State of Utah ex rel. H.R. & B.R.*, 945 P.2d 158 (Utah Ct. App. 1997.)

The claim preclusion branch of res judicata requires three elements: "First, both cases must involve the same parties or their privies. Second the claim that is alleged to be barred must have been presented in the first suit or must be one that could and should have been raised in the first action. Third, the first suit must have resulted in a final judgment on the merits." *State in the Interest of T.J.*, 945 P.2d 158, 162 (Utah Ct. App. 1997).

Both claim preclusion and issue preclusion apply to this case because the same parties and the same issues pertaining to transfer of custody and the validity of the May 22, 1998 Tribal Court order were before the trial court. Judge Hanson irrevocably decided the issues on July 26, 1999. Therefore the trial court in this matter had no choice but to deny giving full faith and credit to the October 16, 1998 Tribal Court order which would directly contradict and overturn Judge Hanson's ruling regarding the earlier May 22, 1998 order. Doing otherwise would overturn Judge Hanson's ruling and affirm the May 22, 1998 in violation of the doctrine of res judicata after Judge Hanson entered findings that it was not entitled to full faith and credit.

III. THE TRIAL COURT'S ORDER SETTING ASIDE JUDGMENT MUST BE AFFIRMED BECAUSE THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION.

The mother's second issue asks, *Did the trial court err in setting aside the Entry of the Foreign Judgment under Rule 60(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure?* The mother's brief mischaracterizes this issue as a question of law. Whether a trial court should grant a motion for relief from judgment is a matter of discretion. *Gillmor v. Wright*, 850 P.2d 431, 434-36 (Utah 1993); *Mascaro v. Davis*, 741 P.2d 938, 942 (Utah 1987); *Laub v. South Cent. Utah Tel Ass'n*, 657 P.2d 1304, 1306 (Utah 1982). A trial court abuses its discretion if there is no reasonable basis for the decision. *Crookston v. Fire Ins. Exch.*, 850 P.2d 937, 938 (Utah 1993). A trial court's ruling will be reversed if the ruling is so unreasonable as to be classified as arbitrary and capricious or a clear abuse of discretion. *Kunzler v. O'Dell*, 855

P.2d 270, 275 (Utah Ct. App. 1993); *Ames v. Maas*, 846 P.2d 468, 476 (Utah Ct. App. 1993).

The mother argues that the Motion to Set Aside was untimely filed, the trial court erred because the grandparents failed to prove sufficient grounds under Rule 60 (b) and the trial court failed to make any conclusion or finding on Rule 60 (b) grounds. **(Appellant's Brief, 30-40)** None of the mother's arguments support abuse of discretion in granting the motion to set aside. The mother's arguments, improperly seeking review under the correctness standard, are discussed *infra*.

- A. The Motion to Set Aside Judgment was timely because the mother's own Entry of Judgment provided that the foreign judgment was given full faith and credit on August 25, 1999 and the motion was brought within three months of the order.**

Despite the fact that the Motion to Set Aside sought relief under Rule 60(b)(3),(4),(5)and/or(6), **(R. 157)** and the trial court granted the motion without entering findings or conclusions as to grounds under Rule 60(b), the mother appears to request that the Appellate Court assume the motion was granted under (60)(b)(3) which would require filing within three months. This is the underlying presumption supporting her contention that the trial court erred because the motion was untimely. Notwithstanding this assumption, nothing in the record supports a determination that the motion was granted specifically under 60(b)(3).

Further, the mother makes the frivolous argument that the grandparents Motion to Set Aside filed on November 16, 1999, within three months of the August 25, 1999 “Entry of Judgment,” was untimely because the foreign judgment “obtained full faith and credit on July 15, 1999, thirty days after the filing on June 15, 1999.” (**Appellant’s Brief, 31**) In essence, the mother argues that the grandparents and the trial court should have presumed the foreign order obtained full faith and credit at a certain date by making a calculation. No such presumption or calculation was necessary, nor binding, because the Entry of Judgment spells out a later date when the foreign judgment was given full faith and credit.

The Entry of Judgment drafted by the mother’s own counsel, and signed by the trial court on August 25, 1999, directly states that: “the Court hereby recognizes and gives full faith and credit to the October 16, 1998 order of the Fort Peck Tribal Court attached hereto. The attached order is hereby given full faith and credit, subject to all the enforcement provisions which govern such judgments.” The order makes it sufficiently clear that the foreign judgment is “hereby” given full faith and credit on the date the order is signed by the Court. (**See Appellant’s Brief, Addenda “H,” R. 68-74.**)

The second tier of the mother’s timeliness argument is that, despite the fact that the Motion to Set Aside specifically sought to set aside an order dated August 25, 1999, the motion **should have** sought to set aside some earlier order and would therefore be untimely. The motion clearly sought to set aside the

August 25, 1999 order, and whether the mother believes this was the proper remedy that should have been requested is irrelevant on the issue of timeliness because there is no question that the motion was brought within three months of the August 25, 1999 order.

The mother's argument fails entirely to demonstrate an abuse of discretion regarding timeliness. Not only did the trial court NOT reach an unreasonable conclusion, it reached the ONLY reasonable conclusion. Moreover, even review of the conclusion under the inappropriate correction of error standard, the Appellate Court must find that trial court's legal conclusion on timeliness is the only correct conclusion inasmuch as it is consistent with the facts on the record regarding the amount of time between the August 25, 1999 order and the November 19, 1999 motion seeking to set it aside.

B. Appeal of the timeliness of the motion is frivolous under Rule 33 of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure and should be sanctioned.

The mother's new position, that the judgment should be presumed to have obtained full faith and credit on the date it was filed rather than the date the entry of judgment was issued, is frivolous under Rule 33 of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure because it is not grounded in fact or law. The position is not grounded in fact or law because the Entry of Judgment itself provides the date the foreign order was given full faith and credit as August 25, 1999, and the Motion to Set Aside clearly sought to set aside that order within three months of entry. This position taken in the mother's brief contradicts the position taken in

the Entry of Judgment her counsel drafted and appears to be made in bad faith. The Court should sanction the mother in the amount of attorneys fees for bringing this frivolous appeal.

C. Sufficient grounds to set aside must be presumed because the mother failed to provide a transcript demonstrating there were insufficient grounds to set aside under Rule 60(b) and failed to marshal the evidence.

The mother argues there were insufficient grounds for the trial court to grant a Rule 60(b) motion. The mother frames this issue as an issue of law although she clearly questions the facts. The mother challenges the sufficiency of the facts at least twice in her brief, stating: "The trial court failed to identify which grounds were applicable to the Rule 60(b) Motion to Set Aside...The judgment should be reversed in that the Appellee's failed to demonstrate evidence justifying relief." (**Appellant's Brief, 32.**) "Appellant's did not demonstrate an adequate factual basis to support this alleged ground for relief. This Court can determine from the record, which is all based upon a Motion and Response, that the factual assertions by the Appellee would have failed to adequately state a claim for any relief under Rule 60(b)(3)." (**Appellant's Brief, 40.**)

As previously set forth, the mother provided no transcript of the November 23, 1999 hearing where the motion was argued and taken under advisement. In fact, the Appellate Court defaulted the mother and set the briefing schedule without benefit of a transcript because she failed to file a

request for transcript or a notice that no transcript was necessary. In absence of a transcript, the Appellate Court has no basis on which to evaluate the findings and conclusions and must review the trial court's legal conclusions for consistency with the findings. *Prudential Capital Group Co. v. Mattson* at 106; *Scarf v. BMG Co.*, 700 P.2d 1068, 1070 (Utah 198); *King v. Industrial Commission of Utah* at 1285.

D. The mother did not preserve for appellate review the issue of Rule 60(b) grounds.

The mother argues the appellate court should reverse the trial court 's order setting aside the August 25, 1999 "Entry of Judgment" because the trial court failed to make findings as to Rule 60(b) grounds. Admittedly, the trial court did not enter findings or conclusions as to the grounds for setting aside the order. However, the appellate court cannot reverse on this issue because the mother failed to preserve the issue for appellate review by failing to make a timely objection in the trial court.

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